<

CHELTENHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Notice of a meeting of
Licensing Sub Committee-Alcohol and Gambling

Thursday, 20 September 2018
6.00 pm
Pittville Room - Municipal Offices

Membership
Councillors: | Tim Harman, Dennis Parsons and Roger Whyborn (Chair)
Officers: Phil Cooper and Vikki Fennel
Agenda

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR

2. APOLOGIES

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

4, DETERMINATION OF AN APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW | (Pages

OF A PREMISES LICENCE 3-30)

Contact Officer: Sophie McGough, Democracy Officer,
Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk



mailto:democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4
Page 3

Cheltenham Borough Council
Licensing Sub-Committee

Licensing Act 2003:
Determination of an application for a review of a premises licence

St James Store, 22 St. James Street, Cheltenham, GL52 2SH
(ref 18/01622/PRMR)

Report of the Licensing Officer

1. Introduction
1.1 Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) allows a responsible authority or any other
person to apply at any time to the licensing authority to review a premises licence or club
premises certificate. Any application for a review of a premises licence or club premises
certificate must relate to the premises in question and to one or more of the Act’s licensing
objectives, which are:
e the prevention of crime and disorder;
e public safety;
e the prevention of public nuisance; and
e the protection of children from harm.

1.2 An application was made on 30" July 2018 by Cheltenham Borough Council, as the
licensing authority, to review the premises licence of St James Store, 22 St. James Street,
Cheltenham, GL52 2SH.

1.3 A copy of the application for review is attached at Appendix A and copies of supporting
evidence are attached at Appendix B. Names have been redacted from the supporting
evidence at the request of the Home Office.

1.4 The applicant has indicated that the application for review relates to:
e the prevention of crime and disorder.

1.5 The grounds for review as stated on the application for review are as follows:

On Tuesday 26 June 2018, Immigration Compliance & Enforcement Officers from the
Home Office’s Immigration Compliance & Enforcement Team - South West visited St
James Store. The visit was as a result of intelligence received that an illegal worker was
employed by the premises.

During the visit, one male was arrested on the premises for Immigration Offences. The
premises was issued with a Civil Penalty Notice.

Paragraph 2.6 of the statutory guidance accompanying the Licensing Act 2003 states: “The
prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the prevention of
illegal working in licensed premises.”

St James Store

Page 1 of 10 Last updated 12 September 2018




14

1.4.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

25

3.1

Page 4

Implications

Legal A sub-committee is required to discharge its duty and determine an
application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives. These
objectives, which are set out in section 4(2) of the Licensing Act 2003,
are: (a) the prevention of crime and disorder; (b) public safety; (c) the
prevention of public nuisance; and (d) the protection of children from
harm.

Contact officer: Vikki Fennell
Email: Vikki.Fennell@tewkesbury.gov.uk
Tel no. 01684 272015

Information relating to the premises licence

Licence holder: Mr Jeyathasan Navaratnam

Designated premises supervisor: Mr Jeyathasan Navaratnam

Premises address: 22 St. James Street, Cheltenham, GL52 2SH

Permitted licensable activities under the premises licence:

Sale by retail of alcohol every day 00:00 - 00:00 (24 hours)

Alcohol sales are authorised for consumption off the premises only.

A copy of the premises licence is attached at Appendix C.

Consultation

A 28 day statutory consultation period commenced on receipt of the application to review
the premises licence. Copies of the review application were served on the licence holder
and each of the responsible authorities designated in the Act:

Environmental health authority

Gloucestershire Constabulary

Gloucestershire fire and rescue service

Health and safety enforcing authority

Planning authority

Responsible authority for the protection of children from harm

Director of public health

Trading Standards

Home Office

In addition a public notice was displayed at the premises for the duration of the statutory
consultation period to give other people the opportunity to make representation.

St James Store

Page 2 of 10 Last updated 12 September 2018




3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

Page 5

During the consultation period the licensing team received notification from Cheltenham
Borough Council’s public and environmental health team that on 3 July 2014 they served a
Simple Caution on the premises licence holder. The caution related to two offences of
causing the sale of unfit food at the premises in contravention of the Food Safety and
Hygiene Regulations 2013, and one offence of displaying for sale a number of unfit food
products in contravention of the Food Labelling Regulations 1996.

No other representations were received during the consultation period.

Local Policy Considerations

The 2003 Act introduced a unified system of regulation through two types of licenses:
personal licences and premises licences (club premises certificates for qualifying clubs).
The Borough Council, as the licensing authority, is responsible for licensing all outlets in the
borough that sell or supply alcohol, provide regulated entertainment or provide late night
refreshment.

The system is underpinned by four objectives: i) the prevention of crime and disorder; ii)
public safety; iii) the prevention of public nuisance; and, iv) the protection of children from
harm. The licensing authority must promote these objectives in carrying out its functions.

The Council’s adopted licensing policy statement (approved December 2015) includes the
following:

Crime and Disorder

The promotion of the licensing objective to prevent crime and disorder, places a
responsibility on licence holders to become key partners in promoting this objective. (3.10)

Applicants will be expected to demonstrate in their operating schedule that suitable and
sufficient measures have been identified and will be implemented and maintained to reduce
or prevent crime and disorder on and in the vicinity of their premises, relevant to the
individual style and characteristics of their premises and events. (3.11)

When addressing the issue of crime and disorder, the applicant should demonstrate that
those factors that impact on crime and disorder have been considered. These factors may
include:

a) Underage drinking;

b) Drunkenness on premises;
c) Public drunkenness;

d) Drugs;

e) Violent behaviour; and/or

f) Anti-social behaviour. (3.12)

In making their decision, regard should be given to the levels of crime and disorder in and
around the venue, the level of compliance with conditions on existing licences and any
available evidence on crime and disorder issues. (3.13)

Management of Licensed Premises
A critical element of the proper control of licensable activity and a premises where such

activity is provided is good management of those activities and the premises generally.
(6.17)

St James Store

Page 3 of 10 Last updated 12 September 2018




Page 6

The council will encourage everybody involved in providing or are involved in licensable
activities, to consider what skills and competencies are appropriate in the safe delivery of
regulated activities and secure these. This applies to managers, musicians, door staff, bar
staff, performers and contractors as well as everyone associated with the activities. (6.18)

Good management also extends to the appropriate advertising of events and premises
users and licensees are expected to control advertising content as part of their role. (6.19)

The council undertakes proactive risk based inspections of all licensed premises to ensure
that they are managed properly. Premises that consistently fail inspections may be subject
to a licence review or other enforcement action. (6.20)

Within all licensed premises, whether or not alcohol is to be sold, the council will expect
there to be proper management arrangements in place which will ensure that there is an
appropriate number of responsible, trained/instructed persons at the premises to ensure the
proper management of the premises and of the activities taking place, as well as adherence
to all statutory duties and the terms and conditions of the premises’ licence. (6.25)

Where there is evidence that the licensing objectives are being compromised or are likely to
be compromised, the council will consider imposing appropriate restrictions on a licence.
This may include, although not limited to, restricting the hours for licensable activities,
restricting the sale of alcoholic beverages over a specified limit of alcohol by volume and/or
of specified quantities. (6.68)

iii)  Enforcement

In terms of regulation, our aim is to target those premises which are causing problems
within our communities whilst supporting well managed premises and community activities,
which provide worthwhile opportunities for the enjoyment of leisure time without having a
negative impact. Premises associated with disorder, threaten public safety, generate public
nuisance, or threaten the wellbeing of our children will be targeted for enforcement action.
(9.1)

Once licensed, it is essential that premises are maintained and operated so as to ensure
the continued promotion of the licensing objectives and compliance with the specific
requirements of the Act. (9.2)

The council will monitor compliance with the licensing objectives through a programme of
inspection visits. The proactive inspection visits are risk based so that those premises that
are at a higher risk of adversely affecting the licensing objectives are more frequently
inspected. (9.3)

The council will also establish enforcement protocols with the police and other enforcement
agencies to ensure efficient and targeted joint enforcement is undertaken on a regular
basis. (9.4)

This does not prevent action being taken by any individual authority at any time should
offences become apparent. (9.5)

The council will take in to account its adopted corporate enforcement policy when deciding
what appropriate action to take. (9.6)

iv)  Reviews

St James Store

Page 4 of 10 Last updated 12 September 2018




Page 7

At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence, a responsible authority, or other
person, may ask the council to review the licence because of a matter arising at the
premises in connection with any of the four licensing objectives. (9.7)

In every case, the application for review must relate to particular premises for which a
licence is in existence and must be relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives.
(9.8)

5. National Guidance

5.1 Guidance has been issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of The Licensing Act
2003. The guidance was last revised in March 2015. Relevant extracts from the statutory
guidance are below, but the full guidance document is available for members to read at
WWW.gQOV.UK.

i) Purpose

This Guidance is provided to licensing authorities in relation to the carrying out of their
functions under the 2003 Act. It also provides information to magistrates’ courts hearing
appeals against licensing decisions and has been made widely available for the benefit of
those who run licensed premises, their legal advisers and the general public. It is a key
medium for promoting best practice, ensuring consistent application of licensing powers
across England and Wales and for promoting fairness, equal treatment and proportionality.
(Paragraph 1.7)

The police remain key enforcers of licensing law. This Guidance does not bind police
officers who, within the parameters of their force orders and the law, remain operationally
independent. However, this Guidance is provided to support and assist police officers in
interpreting and implementing the 2003 Act in the promotion of the four licensing objectives.
(1.8)

i) Legal status

Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a licensing authority
must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182. This
Guidance is therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that extent. However, this
Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that may arise
and, as long as licensing authorities have properly understood this Guidance, they may
depart from it if they have good reason to do so and can provide full reasons. Departure
from this Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the reasons given will
then be a key consideration for the courts when considering the lawfulness and merits of
any decision taken. (1.9)

Nothing in this Guidance should be taken as indicating that any requirement of licensing law
or any other law may be overridden (including the obligations placed on any public
authorities under human rights legislation). This Guidance does not in any way replace the
statutory provisions of the 2003 Act or add to its scope and licensing authorities should note
that interpretation of the 2003 Act is a matter for the courts. Licensing authorities and others
using this Guidance must take their own professional and legal advice about its
implementation. (1.10)

iii) The review process

The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and club premises
certificates represent a key protection for the community where problems associated with
the licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation of a premises licence or club
premises certificate. (11.1)

St James Store

Page 5 of 10 Last updated 12 September 2018




Page 8

At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate, a
responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing authority to review the
licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any of
the four licensing objectives. (11.2)

In every case, any application for a review must relate to particular premises in respect of
which there is a premises licence or club premises certificate and must be relevant to the
promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. Following the grant or variation of a
licence or certificate, a complaint regarding a general issue in the local area relating to the
licensing objectives, such as a general (crime and disorder) situation in a town centre,
should generally not be regarded as a relevant representation unless it can be positively
tied or linked by a causal connection to particular premises, which would allow for a proper
review of the licence or certificate. For instance, a geographic cluster of complaints,
including along transport routes related to an individual public house and its closing time,
could give grounds for a review of an existing licence as well as direct incidents of crime
and disorder around a particular public house. (11.7)

Representations must be made in writing and may be amplified at the subsequent hearing
or may stand in their own right. Additional representations which do not amount to an
amplification of the original representation may not be made at the hearing.
Representations may be made electronically, provided the licensing authority agrees and
the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy, unless the licensing authority waives this
requirement. (11.9)

Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about problems
identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early warning of
their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible they should advise the
licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those concerns. A
failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a decision to apply
for a review. Co-operation at a local level in promoting the licensing objectives should be
encouraged and reviews should not be used to undermine this co-operation. (11.10)

iv) Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review

The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may
exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the promotion
of the licensing objectives. (11.16)

The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take any further
steps appropriate to promote the licensing objectives. In addition, there is nothing to
prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence holder and/or to
recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is expected that licensing
authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important mechanism for ensuring
that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and that warnings should be
issued in writing to the licence holder. (11.17)

However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental health
officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement — either orally or in writing
— that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address concerns, licensing
authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into account
when considering what further action is appropriate. (11.18)

Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is

appropriate, it may take any of the following steps:

e modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new
conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by
reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times;

St James Store

Page 6 of 10 Last updated 12 September 2018




Page 9

e exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within
the incidental live and recorded music exemption);

e remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider
that the problems are the result of poor management;

e suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;

e revoke the licence. (11.19)

In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities
should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at
these causes and should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate
response to address the causes of concern that instigated the review. (11.20)

For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal and
replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a
problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor management
decisions made by that individual. (11.21)

Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company
practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises supervisor may be
an inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed, where subsequent review
hearings are generated by representations, it should be rare merely to remove a
succession of designated premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of
deeper problems that impact upon the licensing objectives. (11.22)

Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and exclusions of
licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a temporary period of up
to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three
months could impact on the business holding the licence financially and would only be
expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of promoting the licensing objectives.
So, for instance, a licence could be suspended for a weekend as a means of deterring
the holder from allowing the problems that gave rise to the review to happen again.
However, it will always be important that any detrimental financial impact that may
result from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and proportionate to the
promotion of the licensing objectives. But where premises are found to be trading
irresponsibly, the licensing authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to
take tough action to tackle the problems at the premises and, where other measures
are deemed insufficient, to revoke the licence. (11.23)

V) Reviews arising in connection with crime

A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly connected
with licensable activities. For example, reviews may arise because of drugs problems at
the premises, money laundering by criminal gangs, the sale of contraband or stolen
goods, the sale of firearms, or the sexual exploitation of children. Licensing authorities
do not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise of any issue. This is a
matter for the courts. The licensing authority’s role when determining such a review is
not therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure the
promotion of the crime prevention objective. (11.24)

Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they are not
part of criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why representations
giving rise to a review of a premises licence need be delayed pending the outcome of

St James Store

Page 7 of 10 Last updated 12 September 2018




Page 10

any criminal proceedings. Some reviews will arise after the conviction in the criminal
courts of certain individuals, but not all. In any case, it is for the licensing authority to
determine whether the problems associated with the alleged crimes are taking place on
the premises and affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives. Where a review
follows a conviction, it would also not be for the licensing authority to attempt to go
beyond any finding by the courts, which should be treated as a matter of undisputed
evidence before them. (11.25)

Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the premises
have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps should
be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime
prevention objective. It is important to recognise that certain criminal activity or
associated problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the best efforts
of the licence holder and the staff working at the premises and despite full compliance
with the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the licensing
authority is still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the problems. The
licensing authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing
objectives and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider community
and not those of the individual licence holder. (11.26)

There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises
which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed
premises:

« for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971
and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime;

« for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;

« for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, which
does considerable damage to the industries affected;

« for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the
health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for crime of
young people;

« for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;

* by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;

+ as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs;

« for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;

+ for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their
immigration status in the UK;

« for unlawful gambling; and

« for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol. (11.27)

It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities,
will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where
reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective
is being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected
that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance — should be seriously
considered. (11.28)

6. Licensing Comments

6.1 Members will note that the statutory guidance identifies certain criminal activities that
should be treated particularly seriously when considering a review of a premises licence,
one of which is “employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their
immigration status in the UK”.

St James Store

Page 8 of 10 Last updated 12 September 2018




Page 11

6.2  Whilst licensing authorities must have regard to the statutory guidance they are not bound
by it and can depart from it if they can provide clear reasons for doing so.

6.3 Members are advised that it is not necessary for a criminal conviction to be secured in
order for the crime and disorder licensing objective to be engaged. Where there is evidence
of the commission of a crime and an application is made to review the licence, the licensing
authority has a duty to consider the evidence to determine whether the operation of the
premises is having an adverse impact on the licensing objectives.

6.4 Members are advised that in addition to the immigration offence, evidence has been
provided of offences committed by the licence holder relating to food safety and labelling.
Whilst these do not directly relate to the licensable activities authorised by the premises
licence, Members may take into account all available evidence that gives an indication of
how the premises are being operated, particularly in relation to crime and disorder.

6.5 Members are advised that the premises licence is subject to a condition which reads:
“There will be a minimum of two members of staff working between 00:00 and 06:00”.
Members will note that the staffing rota provided by the Home Office and attached at
Appendix B suggests that only 1 staff member is on duty at any time.

6.6  The question for the sub-committee is whether the operation of the premises is having an

adverse impact on one or more of the licensing objectives:

e the prevention of crime and disorder;

e public safety;

e the prevention of public nuisance; and

e the protection of children from harm
and if so, whether it is appropriate for the sub-committee to engage its powers and take
action to promote those objectives.

6.7 The sub-committee must have regard to the representations made and the evidence it
hears, and must take such of the following steps as it considers appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives. The sub-committee may:
¢ modify the conditions of the premises licence;

exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;

remove the designated premises supervisor;

suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;

revoke the licence.

6.8 In coming to its decision the sub-committee must have regard to the statutory guidance and
Cheltenham Borough Council’s licensing policy statement, and must provide clear and
comprehensive reasons for their decision. The decision of the sub-committee carries with it
the right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court.

Background Papers Service records
Background papers
Licensing Act 2003

Home Office guidance issued under s.182 of the Act
revised April 2018

Cheltenham Borough Council Licensing Policy
Statement revised December 2015

St James Store

Page 9 of 10 Last updated 12 September 2018




Page 12

Case Officer Contact officer: Mr Philip Cooper
E-mail: licensing@cheltenham.gov.uk
Tel no: 01242 262626

St James Store

Page 10 of 10 Last updated 12 September 2018




Page 13

[Insert name and address of relevant licensing authority and its reference number (optional)]

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I Louis Krog, Licensing Team Leader (Cheltenham Borough Council)

(Insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club
premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below (delete as applicable)

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

22 St. James Street
Cheltenham
GLOS

Post town Post code (if known) GL52 2SH

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)
St James Store

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)
15/00139/PRMV

Part 2 - Applicant details

I am
Please tick v' yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible
authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A) ]
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) =

3) a member of the club to which this application relates ]
(please complete (A) below)




Page 14

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick v" yes

Mr ] Mrs  [] Miss [ ] Ms ] Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick v" yes
I am 18 years old or over ]

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)




Page 15

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

Licensing Section
Cheltenham Borough Council
Municipal Offices
Promenade

Cheltenham

GL50 9SA

Telephone number (if any)
01242 262626

E-mail address (optional)
Louis.krog@cheltenham.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes v/
1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protection of children from harm

I



mailto:Louis.krog@cheltenham.gov.uk

Page 16

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

On Tuesday 26 June 2018, Immigration Compliance & Enforcement Officers from the Home
Office’s Immigration Compliance & Enforcement Team - South West visited St James Store. The
visit was as a result of intelligence received that an illegal worker was employed by the premises.

During the visit, one male was arrested on the premises for Immigration Offences. The premises
was issued with a Civil Penalty Notice.

| attach with this application form statements and evidence submitted by XXXXXXXX
(Immigration Officer #16532) and XXXXXXXX (Immigration Officer 17209).

Paragraph 2.6 of the statutory guidance accompanying the Licensing Act 2003 states: “The
prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the prevention of
illegal working in licensed premises.”




Page 17

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 3)

I attach with this application form statements and evidence submitted by XXXXXXXX
(Immigration Officer #16532) and XXXXXXXX (Immigration Officer 17209).




Page 18

Please tick v yes

Have you made an application for review relating to the ]
premises before

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month  Year

HEEREEEN

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
and when you made them




Page 19

Please tick v’
yes

o | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities =
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate,
as appropriate

e lunderstand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my Y
application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO AFINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Capacity  Licensing Team Leader

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional)




Page 20

Notes for Guidance

1.

n

A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.

The application form must be signed.

An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.



MG 1] (T)

WITNESS STATEMENT
(C Act 1967, s.9; MC Act 1980, $5.5A(3)(n) and 5B; MC Rules 1981, r.70)
Statement of G URN:
Age ifunder 18 Over 18 (il over 18 insert ‘over 18") Occup‘ution: Immigration Officer

This statement (consmmg of: 1 page each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I riake it
knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosccuuon if 1 have wilfully stated anything in it which I
know to be false, or do not believe o be true.

Signature: Date; 11" July 2018

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded (Supply witness delails on rear)

| am the above named person and | am employed within the HOME OFFICE as an Immigration
Officer. Itis part of my duties to determine the immigration status of persons who are subject to control
under the Immigration Act 1971 as amended also to have responsibility for the custody of Home Office

records,
On Tuesday 26" June 2018 at 04:40 hours | started my shift at Gonference House, Portishead. | was

on duty in uniform for visits as Officer in Charge (OIC), also attending the visit were Chief immigration
Officer CIO}= CIO* immigration Officer (10) /S
*’ 10 and 10 GOREDSTIRED

The premises to be visited was Premlum Convenience Stare, 22 James Street, Cheltenham, GL52
2SH. Entry to the premises was by fully informed consent. We were vnsitlng the premises as intel
suggested illegal workers were employed at the premises of Indian origin.

At 08:58 fully, Informed consent was gained by 1O vho gave the Notice to Occupier (NtO)
form to a person called (ESENMSMNEE o \was Working behind the till of the premises. | heard
Ioﬂexplain the purpose of the visit and state that consent could be withdrawn at any point,

At one point in the visit |0 @@llarrested a male for immigration offences who was found in a
store-room area of the premises. It appeared that he was living in the store room as he has a locked
sultcase and other persgnal possessions such as mobile tablet device and mobile telephone in the

store-room as well as bedding

| spoke to- , also employed at the premises wha qhowed me a work rota. On the

rota was the name s Is an alias for , SriLanka,! ... i

the male that 10 QSIS arrested for immigration offences. | took a picture of the rota and it is
evidenced under the reference NWF0001 — Wark Rota. The picture was taken under section 47 of
the Immigration Act 2016 ~ search of the premises in connection with the imposition of a civil penalty.

AL 09:52 | served a civil penalty notice for the lllegal employee found at the premises to’

[ stood all remaining members of the team down and we left the premises at 10:03, | recorded this on
the NtO given to

w“*This statement was written by me at Conference Avenue, Conference House, Portishead, BS20
7LZ on the 11" July 2018 at 11:30 hours.***

@S 0 16532

Signalure: Nick Pindlow Signature wilnessed by:

2004:05(1): MG LI(T)




Home address;  Conlerence Avenue, Conference House, Portishead,

Postcode; BS20 7LZ

Home telephone number . Wark telephone number

Mobile/pager number s Email nddress: “ ‘

Prefarred means of eontact: B mai)
Male .
Former pame; ‘
Diaigs of witness Iit'y:: )
rrnb s ear et rrarend Virveerue vy ereysttenerey
Wilnpss care

) 15 the Wwitness willing and likely to attend court? Yes / No, If *No’, include renson(s) on MG6. What can be done to ensure
attgndance? Yes

b)  Does the wilness require *special measures' as a vulnerable or intimidated witness? No,

c) Does the witness have any specific care needs? No

2

Witness Consent (for witness completion)
a)  The criminal justice process and Victim Personal Statement scheme (vietims only) has Yes D No
been explained to me

b) I have been given (he leaflet *Giving a witness slalement (o police - what happens next?’  Yes D No

IDDZE@

¢) I consent to police having nécess to my medical records in relation to this matter: Yes l | No lz
d)  Iconsent to my medical record in relation to this matter being disclosed to the defence: Yes [:l No N/A [z
¢)  1consent to the statement being disclosed for the purposes of civil proceedings e.g, child ~ Yes I:l No- N/A @/

care proceedings (if applicable)
B The information recorded above will be disclosed to the Witness Service so they can offer
help and support, unless you ask them not to., Tick this box 10 decline their services:

Signature of witness: "

?

Statement taken by (print name): “

Station: South West ICE

Time and place statement 1aKen:  1HOT2018. . iiaermmiisimioiss sttt s b s ssbeess st 1 s s bbb U106

2004:05(1 ) MG 11(T)




- MG U

WITNESS STATEMENT

Criminal Procedure Rules, r 16.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967,8. 9

Statement of  QEENEEEERERE ...................oro00 v URNG

Age ifunder 18 Over 18 .o (if over 18 insert ‘over 18”) Occupation: Immigration Officer .

This statement (consisting of: ‘5?. e pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I
make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecation if I have wilfully stated anything in it
which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature:

Date: 20/07/2018 currrecircrearnrenerinns

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded (supply witness details on rear)

| am Immigration Officer 17200( EEIRNENINED, currenily attached to Reporting Offender Management South
West, Immigration and Enfarcement, Gonference House, Conference Avenue, Portishead, Bristol, BS20 7LZ.

On 26% June 2018, | was on duty in full uniform, | attended a briefing held by the Officer In Charge, Immigration
OfficerGEESRERERED. | was Informed that | would be condueting an enforcement visit at PREMIUM
CONVENIENT STORE, 22 JAMES COURT, CHELTENHAM, GL52 2SH. Intelligence suggested that persons
were working at the address llegally. | was advised that entry to the premises would be galned by fully informed
consent by myself. '
{ was in company with Immigration Officers, Officer in Charge SRR \migration Officer CREMINER

, Chief Immigration Officer (REBENSNEEEED, Assistant nmigration Officer (GEERESIE AND Chicf
Immigration Officer .
At 09;00 | galhed entry by consent, the employee who was in charge of the shop signed the Notlce of right and
entittements.(SEED <ncountered a subject In the back office sleeping In a bed. Once he was dressed, He
handed me some Home office papers with his details on also his Solicitors details. | now know him to be

A Date of Birth. » and phoned through for checks in which it came back that

he was a port absconder no leave, all applications/appeals refused, expired PPT held with the Home Office.

I canflrmed with him that he had no applications/appeals outstanding with the Home Office. | arrested him at

09:14 a person Liable to be detained Schedule 2 paragraph 17(1) of the Immigration Act 1971 As Amended. The
reasons of the arrest were explained to subject in English and he confirmed that he understood.
| then asked questions referring to working:-

Q ¢, Are you helping out here in the shop?

A ¢, NO 'M COMING TO SEE MY FRIEND.

Q 4, You are working here?

A ¢, HELP WHEN MY FIREND 1S ON HOLIDAY.

Q ¢, Do you take money?

A, NO - NO

A i YES I'M SERVING HERE.

Q.¢, How much do you get paid?

Signatiare: Signatire Wiliessed DY i AT

10/2017 MG 11




Page 24

page 2 of 4

Continuation of Statement of  Justinee PICKETT 12079 Page 20123 s e v et

A §, FOOD ACCOMMODATION.

Q ¢, What hours do you do?

A ¢ NIGHT SHIFT.

Q ¢, How long have you been working here?
A 2 WEEKS

Q ¢, Who's your manager?

A AATIONAL.
Q ¢, Contract?

A ;, NAME ON ROTA NO CONTRACT.

Q ¢ Did you show ID when you started?

A i, NO DOCUMENT,

Subject was searched By @EEgEEE under section 258 of the Immigration Act 1971 As Amended to ensure he
was not in possession of anything that may aid escape or cause harm to himself or others.

At 09:52 subject was escorted from the premises and placed Into an Immigratlon cell van. No restraints were
used as subject was compliant. Subject was then transferred to Gloucester Police Custody.

.

#**This statement was written by me at Conference House, Portishead BS20 7LZ on 20" July
201 8****

g 11000

Signature:...

Signalure: SOV OOTIOUTION Signature witnessed by: rterbetneariare e e b e ererreses

1072011







This page is intentionally left blank



CHELTENHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Licensing Act 2003
Cheltenham Borough Council

Premises Licence Number 15/00139/PRMV

Part 1 — Premises Details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including
Post Town, Post Code

St James Store

22 St. James Street

Cheltenham

GLOS

GL52 25H

Telephone number 01242 579187

Where the licence is time limited the dates

Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence and the times the licence authorises the carrying
out of licensable activities

Sale/Supply of Alcohol Every Day 00:00 -00:00

The opening hours of the premises

Opening Hours Every Day 00:00 - 00:00

Non Standard Timings

Not Applicable

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies

Off

St James Store Page 1




Page 28

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence

Mr Jeyathasan Navaratnam

22 St James Street

Cheltenham

GLOS

GL52 2SH

Business Phone Number 01242 579187

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)

| Not Applicable

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

Mr Jeyathasan Navaratnam

68 Talbot Road

Harrow

Middlesex

HA3 7QF

Business Phone Number 01242 579187

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

| Party Reference: 05NJ-00AQ-WRNX-GFWQ Licensing Authority: Harrow Council

Signature of Issuing Officer

z
x s : f«&f)(o‘i\

Director — Environmental & Regulatory Services

Date of issue
9 July 2015

St James Store Page 2



Page 29

Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions

1

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1
(a) "Duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
(b) "Permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula -
P=D+(DxV)
Where-
(i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged
on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;
(c) "Relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence-
(i) The holder of the premises licence,
(ii) The designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) The personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such
a licence;
(d) "Relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity
which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
(e) "Valued added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax
Act 1994.

Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

(1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2
on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the
second day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

No retail sale of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:

(a) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence,
or

(b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.

(c) Every retail sale of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a
person who holds a personal licence.

(d) The other conditions are any conditions specified in an order under section 19A and
applicable to the premises licence.

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

1

2

This licence permits the sale by retail of alcohol for consumption off the premises only.

The CCTV system shall be maintained in good working order, shall record at all times that the
premises are open, and recordings shall be kept for 28 days (14 days for digital systems) and be
provided to officers of the council and the police on request.

The Challenge 21 (or equivalent) scheme shall be adopted, so that any customer attempting to
purchase alcoholic liquor who appears to be under the age of 21 shall be asked for an accredited
photographic proof of their age (e.g. passport, photo driving licence, PASS-approved card) and
that a sale shall not be made unless this evidence is produced.

St James Store Page 3



Page 30

4 Spirits shall only be displayed behind the staff counter. With the exception of the wine display,
alcohol will not be displayed within 5 metres of any entrance/exit door in regular use by
customers, and shall remain in direct line of sight of staff at the Checkout/Serving Counter

5 There will be a minimum of two members of staff working between 00:00 and 06:00.

Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

1 Not Applicable

Annex 4 — Plans

1 SRJ Shop fitters plan dated 24/09/2007

St James Store Page 4



	Agenda
	4 Determination of an application for a review of a premises licence
	Appendix A - application form
	Appendix B - background papers
	Appendix C - premises licence


